
Appendix A: Description of Data Sources—A 
Resource for States 

In this appendix, we describes several sources of data that state officials and 
others  may find useful.  The data sources are listed under the following categories: 

1. General information; 

2. Demographic information; 

3. Economic and financial information; 

4. Health information (general health information, as well as information on 
health and behaviors, long-term care and disability rates, service use and 
providers, and health expenditures); 

5. Transportation and infrastructure information; 

6. Housing information; 

7. Education information; and 

8. Technology information. 

1.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

AARP 
AARP is a nonprofit membership organization dedicated to addressing the needs 

and interests of persons age 50 and older.  The AARP in Your State Program produces 
state newsletters and provides other information (Available at: 
http://www.aarp.org/states/).  Additionally, the AARP Public Policy Institute 
produces publications on issues such as health and long-term care, economic security 
and work, independent living, and consumer issues.  The data presented are often 
state-level data. 

Available at: http://www.aarp.org/ppi/

Administration on Aging (AoA) 
AoA, an agency of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, is the 

official Federal agency dedicated to advocating for older persons and to the 
development of policy, planning, and the delivery of supportive home and 
community-based services to older persons and their caregivers.  The AoA Web site 

http://www.aarp.org/states/


provides national-level statistical information on a variety of topics, including healthy 
aging, minority aging, and grandparents. 

Available at: http://www.aoa.gov & http://www.aoa.gov/prof/Statistics/statistics.asp 

http://www.aoa.gov/


American Community Survey (ACS) 
The ACS is a new, nationwide annual survey conducted by the U.S. Census 

Bureau in the U.S. Department of Commerce.  The survey will provide the detailed 
information the long form of the decennial census currently provides.  It will provide 
estimates of demographic, housing, social, and economic characteristics every year for 
all states, as well as for all cities, counties, metropolitan areas, and population groups 
of 65,000 people or more.  Data for smaller areas will also be available, though not for 
three to five years. 

Available at: http://www.census.gov/acs/www 

Current Population Survey (CPS) 
The CPS is a monthly survey of about 50,000 households conducted by the 

Bureau of the Census in the U.S. Department of Commerce for the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics in the U.S. Department of Labor. The survey has been conducted for more 
than 50 years.  National-level data and statistics are available for employment, 
unemployment, earnings, hours of work, and other indicators. Data are available for a 
variety of demographic characteristics including age, sex, race, marital status, and 
educational attainment. 

Available at: http://www.bls.census.gov/cps/cpsmain.htm

Health and Retirement Study (HRS) of the University of Michigan 
The University of Michigan’s HRS is a national survey of more than 22,000 

Americans over the age of 50.  Conducted every two years, the survey provides 
information on an aging America's physical and mental health, insurance coverage, 
financial status, family support systems, labor market status, and retirement planning.  
Although state-level data are not available, national trends can be tracked over time, 
and an extensive bibliography of published articles using HRS data is available. 

Available at: http://hrsonline.isr.umich.edu/papers/index.html

National Conference of State Legislatures (NCSL) 
NCSL provides information on legislative activities, policy issues, and state and 

Federal Government activities on issues such as health, education, state budgets, 
transportation, and labor and employment.  Information is provided at the state level. 

Available at: http://www.ncsl.org/programs/health/health.htm

http://hrsonline.isr.umich.edu/papers/index.html


National Governors Association (NGA) 
NGA is the collective voice of the nation's governors.  In addition to representing 

states on Capitol Hill and before the Administration, NGA develops policy reports on 
innovative state programs and hosts seminars for state government executive branch 
officials. The NGA Center for Best Practices focuses on state innovations and best 
practices on issues that range from education and health (including aging and long-
term care) to technology, welfare reform, and the environment. 

Available at: www.nga.org

National Institute on Aging (NIA) 
NIA, one of the National Institutes of Health, conducts and supports biomedical, 

social, and behavioral research; provides research training; and disseminates research 
findings and health information on aging processes, diseases, and other special 
problems and needs of older people. 

Available at: http://www.nia.nih.gov/

NIA has established 11 Centers on the Demography of Aging to provide 
innovative and policy-relevant research on health, social factors, economics, and 
other issues that affect the U.S. older population.  Centers are located at the following 
institutions:  University of California Berkeley; University of Chicago, University of 
Colorado Boulder, Duke University, University of Michigan, National Bureau of 
Economic Research, University of Pennsylvania, RAND, Stanford University, 
University of Southern California, and University of Wisconsin. 

Available at: http://agingmeta.psc.isr.umich.edu/

U.S. Census 
Conducted by the Bureau of the Census in the U.S. Department of Commerce 

every 10 years, the U.S. census provides information on a large number of topics, 
including income, race, age, home ownership, educational attainment, and computer 
usage.  Using the American FactFinder feature, tables of census questions can be 
created at the national, state, county, and city/local level.  Data and reports for 1990 
and 2000 are available online. 

Available at: http://www.census.gov or 
http://factfinder.census.gov/servlet/BasicFactsServlet

http://www.nih.gov/
http://www.census.gov/


Urban Institute’s Assessing the New Federalism Project 
The Urban Institute’s Assessing the New Federalism project is a multiyear 

research project that analyzes the devolution of responsibility for social programs 
from the Federal government to the states.  The project focuses on 13 states: Alabama, 
California, Colorado, Florida, Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, New 
Jersey, New York, Texas, Washington, and Wisconsin.  A database supplies state-
specific data for all 13 states as well as data for all states in areas such as income, 
health, and well-being. 

Available at: 
http://www.urban.org/Content/Research/NewFederalism/AboutANF/AboutANF.htm

The White House Latest Federal Government Statistics Web Site 
This White House Web site provides links to the most currently available 

statistical indicators produced by a number of Federal agencies.  All of the 
information is maintained by the statistical units of those agencies.  Depending on the 
source, data are available at multiple levels, including state and national levels. 

Available at: http://www.whitehouse.gov/news/fsbr.html

2.  DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 

Bureau of the Census 
The Bureau of the Census within the U.S. Department of Commerce has 

developed population projections at the national and state levels to 2025. 

Available at: http://www.census.gov or 
http://factfinder.census.gov/servlet/BasicFactsServlet

Bureau of Citizenship and Immigration Services (BCIS) 
BCIS, located within the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, produces 

monthly statistical reports, as well as an annual statistical yearbook. 

Available at: 
http://www.immigration.gov/graphics/shared/aboutus/stati tics/publist.htms

3.  ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA) 
BEA’s Regional Accounts Program at the U.S. Department of Commerce  

produces quarterly estimates of personal income by state and annual estimates of 
personal income by county and metropolitan area.  BEA also prepares national, 

http://www.urban.org/
http://www.census.gov/
http://www.immigration.gov/graphics/shared/aboutus/statistics/publist.htm


regional, industry, and international accounts on issues such as economic growth and 
regional economic development. 

Available at: http://www.bea.doc.gov/

Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) 
BLS, within the U.S. Department of Labor, is the Federal agency responsible for 

the collection and analysis of labor economics and statistics.  Data on employment, 
unemployment, wages, occupations, productivity, and inflation and consumer 
spending are available at the national, regional, state, and local levels. 

Available at: http://www.bls.gov/

Congressional Budget Office (CBO) 
CBO publishes reports and testimony on issues such as health, social security and 

pensions, and taxes.  Most of the information is national in scope. 

Available at: http://www.cbo.gov/

Council of Economic Advisors 
The Council of Economic Advisors provides the President with economic analysis 

and advice on the development and implementation of a wide range of domestic and 
international economic policy issues.  It also produces the annual Economic Report of 
the President, which provides analysis of the nation’s economy and includes data and 
statistics on income, employment, and gross domestic product. 

Available at: http://www.whitehouse.gov/cea/pubs.html

Economic Indicators.gov Web site of the U.S. Department of 
Commerce 

This Web site, a resource of the Economics and Statistics Administration at the 
U.S. Department of Commerce, provides links to the current reports on key economic 
indicators from the Bureau of Economic Analysis and the U.S. Census Bureau.  A free 
subscription is available.  Data are reported at the state, local, and regional levels. 

Available at: http://www.economicindicators.gov/

Employee Benefits Research Institute (EBRI) 
EBRI is an organization that disseminates data and provides policy research and 

education on economic security and employee benefits.  Major surveys include the 
annual Retirement Confidence Survey and the Health Confidence Survey. Access is 
limited to members. 

http://www.esa.doc.gov/
http://home.doc.gov/
http://www.bea.gov/
http://www.census.gov/


Available at: www.ebri.org

http://www.ebri.org/


National Association of State Budget Officers (NASBO) 
NASBO is the professional membership organization for state finance officers.  

Reports include the semiannual The Fiscal Survey of States, the annual State 
Expenditure Report, and the biennial Budget Processes in the States.  Data are at the 
state level. 

Available at: http://www.nasbo.org/publications.php

National Bureau of Economic Research (NBER) 
NBER is a research organization that provides Internet links to many government 

data sources and also produces working papers, reports, and books.  Information is 
primarily national in scope. 

Available at: www.nber.org   and 
www.nber.org/aging.html

The Nelson A. Rockefeller Institute of Government’s Gateway to 
State and Local Government Information 

The Gateway to State and Local Government Information is a Web site that was 
created at the Nelson A. Rockefeller Institute of Government in late fall 2002.  The 
purpose was to create an accessible source of data and analysis on state and local 
government finances and operations and to provide an electronic discussion forum to 
facilitate the exchange of information and ideas on those topics.  The Web site is still 
under development but comparative expenditure and revenue data for all 50 states are 
available. 

Available at: http://stateandlocalgateway.rockinst.org/

Social Security Administration’s Office of Policy 
The Social Security Administration’s Office of Policy is responsible for analysis 

and research on policy initiatives for the Social Security Old-Age, Survivors, and 
Disability Insurance (OASDI) programs and the Supplemental Security Income (SSI) 
Program.  This function involves developing and maintaining a series of detailed 
statistical databases and developing information for special requests on current policy 
issues.  The statistical tables provide data on beneficiaries in individual states, 
localities, or congressional districts, and information about beneficiaries and 
expenditures of the Social Security program and other major social insurance and 
welfare programs. 

Available at: http://www.ssa.gov/policy/data.h mlt

http://www.nber.org/
http://www.nber.org/aging.html
http://stateandlocalgateway.rockinst.org/
http://www.ssa.gov/policy/data.html


4.  HEALTH INFORMATION 

General Health Information 

Kaiser Family Foundation’s State Health Facts Online 
The Kaiser Family Foundation State Health Facts Online is a Web page that 

provides a compilation of state-level data, mostly from other sources, on 
demographics and health, and health policy issues.  Covered topics include health 
coverage, access, financing, and state legislation. 

Available at: http://www.statehealthfacts.kff.org/ 

National Center for Health Statistics (NCHS) 
The National Center for Health Statistics (NCHS) within the Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services is the 
nation’s principal health statistics agency.  NCHS has two major types of data systems: 
(1) data systems based on populations and collected through personal interviews or 
examinations; and (2) data systems based on records, containing data collected from 
vital and medical records. National trends can be tracked over time. 

Available at: http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/

The National Health Interview Survey (NHIS), conducted annually by NCHS, 
provides data on health topics including disease prevalence, exercise participation, 
mental health, health status, physician office visits, and hearing and vision problems.  
The national data can be used to track trends over time. 

Available at: http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/nhis.htm

The Data Warehouse on Trends in Health and Aging, a project of the Aging 
Studies Branch of NCHS, provides data tables that describe trends in health and aging.  
Examples of topics include health care expenditures, life expectancy, health status and 
chronic conditions, and mortality by cause.  Some data are available by state. 

Available at: http://www.cdc.gov.nchs/agingact.htm

National Conference of State Legislatures’ Health Policy 
Tracking Service (HPTS) 

The National Conference of State Legislatures’ HPTS reports on state health 
legislation, policies, and programs.  The information is compiled from state contacts in 
legislatures, health, human service, and insurance agencies.  The information and 
analysis are arranged in five categories:  (1) behavioral health, (2) finance, (3) 
Medicaid, (4)  pharmaceuticals, and (5) providers.  Some fact sheets are available to 

http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/nhis.htm
http://www.cdc.gov.nchs/agingact.htm


the general public but membership is required for full access.  Data are provided at 
the state level. 

Available at: http://www.hpts.org/HPTS97/home03.nsf

Information about Health and Behaviors 

Behavior Risk Factor Surveillance System (BRFSS) 
BRFSS is a large ongoing telephone-based survey of adults 18 and older in the 

United States.  The survey is conducted by the National Center for Chronic Disease 
Prevention and Health Promotion within the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.  It covers topics 
such as alcohol use, smoking, weight control, health care access, and health care 
utilization.  For many questions, data are provided by age groups.  Since 1994, all 
states, the District of Columbia, and three territories have participated in BRFSS.  
State-level data can be tracked over time and compared with data from other states. 

Available at: http://www.cdc.gov/brfss

DATA 2010—The Healthy People 2010 Database 
DATA2010 is an interactive database system developed and supported by the 

National Center for Health Statistics within the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services that contains the 
most recent data for tracking the Healthy People 2010 initiative.  Healthy People 
2010 contains 467 objectives that identify specific measures to monitor health in the 
first decade of the 21st century.  Each objective includes a statement of intent, a 
baseline value for the measure to be tracked, and a target to be achieved by the year 
2010.  Data for the population-based objectives may be presented separately for select 
populations, such as racial, gender, educational attainment, or income groups.  The 
objectives are organized into 28 focus areas, each representing an important public 
health area.  DATA 2010 contains primarily national data, but some state-based data 
are also available. 

Available at: http://wonder.cdc.gov/DATA2010/

National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES) 
The National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES) is a survey 

conducted by the National Center for Health Statistics within the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.  This 
survey provides information about the health and diet of people in the United States.  
National data can be tracked over time. 

http://www.hpts.org/HPTS97/home03.nsf
http://www.cdc.gov/brfss


Available at: http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/nhanes.htm

Youth Risk Behavior Surveillance System (YRBSS) 
YRBSS is an ongoing survey of 9th through 12th grade students conducted by the 

National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion within the 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention of the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Service.  Comparable national, state, and local data from YRBSS are available 
for topics such as alcohol use, smoking, weight control, health care access, and health 
care utilization. 

Available at: http://www.cdc.gov/nccdphp/dash/yrbs/index.htm

Information about Long-Term Care & Disability Rates 

Georgetown University Long-Term Care Financing Project 
The Georgetown University Long-Term Care Financing Project, a project at 

Georgetown’s Health Policy Institute, provides analysis of the current long-term care 
financing structure, as well as of policy initiatives designed to improve the structure.  
Fact sheets and issues briefs provide national data and statistics on issues related to 
long-term care, such as the numbers of people needing long-term care and how such 
care is paid for. 

Available at: http://ltc.georgetown.edu/index.html

National Long-Term Care Survey (NLTCS) 
The NLTCS, sponsored by the National Institute on Aging and conducted at the 

Center for Demographic Studies at Duke University, is a multiyear study of the health 
and well-being of Americans over the age of 65. It was conducted in 1982, in 1984, 
and every five years thereafter. The NLTCS helps identify changes in the physical and 
mental health, insurance coverage, financial status and family support systems of 
Americans over 65.  National level data can be tracked over several years. 

Available at: http://cds.duke.edu/NLTCS/

National Health Interview Survey—Disability Supplement (NHIS-
D) 

The National Center for Health Statistics within the Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services conducted two 
phases of the NHIS-D in 1994 and 1995.  National-level data were collected by NHIS-
D for all age groups of the noninstitutionalized population with disabilities.  The 
survey was designed to assist in understanding disability, developing public health 

http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/nhanes.htm
http://www.cdc.gov/nccdphp/dash/yrbs/index.htm
http://www.nia.nih.gov/


policy, producing prevalence estimates of health conditions, and providing statistics 
on the effects of disability. 

Available at: http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/about/major/nhis_dis/nhis_dis.htm

Information About Service Use and Providers 

American Health Care Association’s Facts & Trends 2001: The 
Nursing Facility Sourcebook 

Facts and Trends 2001: The Nursing Facility Sourcebook of the American Health 
Care Association provides national and state-level nursing home data on supply, 
usage, patient characteristics, and facility characteristics.  Many of the state-level data 
are collected by the Online Survey, Certification and Reporting (OSCAR) system of 
the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. 

Available at: http://www.ahca.org/research/index.html

Bureau of Health Professions’ State Health Workforce Profiles 
The State Health Workforce Profiles, compiled by the Bureau of Health 

Professions of the Health Resources and Services Administration, provide data on 
supply, demand, distribution, education and use of health personnel for all 50 states 
and the District of Columbia.  Each profile has three sections: (1) a brief overview of 
residents' health status and health services that influence supply of and demand for 
health workers; (2) health care employment by place of work, including hospitals, 
nursing homes and other settings; and (3) health care employment in more than 25 
health professions and occupations. 

Available at: http://www.bhpr.hrsa.gov/healthworkforce/reports/profiles/

Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) 
Health-provider-related data available from BLS within the U.S. Deparment of 

Labor include the number and earnings of physicians, nurses, and aides at the 
national, state, and metropolitan area level. 

Available at: www.bls.gov/data/home.htm

http://www.bls.gov/data/home.htm


Center for Studying Health System Change (HSC) 
HSC designs and conducts studies focused on the U.S. health care system.  HSC’s 

primary effort is the Community Tracking Study (CTS), a survey conducted in 60 
communities.  The CTS consists of a household survey that focuses on consumer 
access to the health care system; a physician survey that collects data on whether 
physicians are able to provide needed services for patients; an employer survey that 
covers issues of plan choice and employee contributions; and onsite visits to 12 cities 
to conduct interviews of health care leaders.  National data are available for the 
household and physician surveys conducted in 1996-97, 1998-99, and 2000-01.  The 
employee survey was conducted only in 1997. 

Available at: http://www.hschange.com/index.cgi?data=01

National Academy for State Health Policy’s (NASHP) 2002 State 
Assisted Living Policy Report 

NASHP’s 2002 State Assisted Living Policy Report provides current regulations 
and information on assisted living regulations and Medicaid reimbursement policy in 
each of the 50 states.  The report includes detailed comparisons of state policy and a 
summary of each state’s assisted living regulations.  The report also provides state-
level statistics on the numbers of beds and facilities. 

Available at: http://www.nashp.org

National Health Care Survey 
The National Health Care Survey, conducted annually by the National Center for 

Health Statistics within the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention of the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services, is a group of eight health care provider 
surveys that obtain information about the facilities that supply health care, the 
services rendered, and the characteristics of the patients served.  The surveys include 
the National Ambulatory Medical Care Survey (NAMCS), the National Nursing Home 
Survey (NNHS); and the National Home and Hospice Care Survey (NHHCS). Data are 
national. 

Available at: http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/nhcs.htm

http://www.nashp.org/
http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/about/major/ahcd/ahcd1.htm
http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/about/major/nnhsd/nnhsd.htm
http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/about/major/nnhsd/nnhsd.htm
http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/about/major/nhhcsd/nhhcsd.htm


Information about Health Expenditures 

2003 Data Compendium Compiled by the Centers for Medicare 
and Medicaid Services (CMS) 

For years, CMS has printed an annual Data Compendium giving key statistics 
about CMS programs and health care spending.  The 2003 Data Compendium, 
available online, contains historic, current, and projected data on Medicare 
enrollment and Medicaid recipients, expenditures, and utilization. Data pertaining to 
budget, administrative and operating costs, individual income, financing, and health 
care providers and suppliers are also included.  Data are available at both the national 
and state level. 

Available at: http://www.cms.hhs.gov/researchers/pubs/datacompendium/current 

Home and Community-Based Services Resource Network 
This Web site provides Medicaid expenditure data on long-term care from the 

Centers for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) that have been compiled by 
Medstat.  Current national and state level data are available.  State data are available 
back to 1997 and national data are available starting in 1990. 

Available at: http://www.hcbs.org/browse.php/topic/35/0fs/10

Medicaid Data Compiled by the Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid Services (CMS) 

The primary Medicaid data sources are the Medicaid Statistical Information and 
(MSIS) and the CMS-64 reports.  MSIS is the source of state-reported eligibility and 
claims data on the Medicaid population, their characteristics, utilization and 
payments.  CMS-64 is produced by the financial budget and grant systems.  State and 
national level data are available in downloadable spreadsheet files. 

Available at: http://cms.hhs.gov/medicaid/mcaidsad.asp 

Medical Expenditure Panel Survey (MEPS) 
MEPS, conducted by the Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality within the 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, is a survey of the community-based 
civilian population.  MEPS provides data and statistics on health care expenses, 
including the type of medical services used, how frequently they are used, the cost of 
services, and the payment source for services, as well as health conditions and health 
insurance availability and coverage.  MEPS also collects extensive information on 
employer-based health insurance plans.  Data are not available by state but national 
trends can be tracked over time. 

http://www.cms.hhs.gov/researchers/pubs/datacompendium/


Available at: http://www.ahrq.gov/data/mepsix.htm

National Health Expenditures and State Health Accounts 
The Health Accounts include the National Health Expenditures and the State 

Health Accounts.  The National Health Expenditures measure spending for health 
care in the United States by the type of service delivered and the funding source for 
those services; expenditures are available for 1960-2001, with projections to 2012.  
State Health Accounts provide estimates of health care spending by type of service for 
each state; data are available for 1991-1998. 

Available at: http://www.cms.gov/statistics/nhe/default.asp

5.  TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE INFORMATION 

American Public Transportation Association (APTA) 
APTA is the trade association for the public transit industry.  It compiles and 

reports data and statistics on all forms of public transportation.  National-level data 
and transit-agency-level data (e.g., data from the MTA New York City Transit) are 
available for many topics, including expenditures, mileage, and passenger numbers. 

Available at: http://www.apta.com/research/stats/

Bureau of Transportation Statistics (BTS) 
BTS, a division of the U.S. Department of Transportation, reports national data on 

all modes of transportation.  Some information, for example, information on 
commuter trip times, is available by state, urban area, and county.  BTS is conducting 
a State Transportation Profiles series of reports that provides data related to each 
state's infrastructure, safety, freight movement and passenger travel, vehicles, 
economy and finance, and energy and the environment. In addition to presenting 
tables for each state, the reports describe data sources. 

Available at: http://www.bts.gov/

Highway Statistics Series 
The highway statistics series, which is compiled by the Office of Highway Policy 

and Information in the Federal Highway Administration of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation, consists of annual reports containing data on a variety of highway-
related information, including motor vehicles, driver licensing; state and local 
government highway finance; highway mileage, and Federal aid for highways. The 
data, presented in tabular format and in selected charts, have been published each 
year since 1945.  For many topics, current and historical state-level data are available. 

Available at: http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/policy/ohpi/hss/abouthss.htm



Insurance Institute for Highway Safety’s Highway Loss Data 
Institute (IIHS-HLDI) 

IIHS-HLDI conducts and publishes research on highway safety issues.  A state 
law facts section provides up-to-date state-by-state information on licensure safety-
related activities and speed limit laws. 

Available at: http://www.hwysafety.org

6.  HOUSING INFORMATION 

HUD USER 
HUD USER, maintained by the Office of Policy Development and Research of the 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, is the primary source for 
Federal Government data, reports, and information on housing policy and programs, 
building technology, economic development, urban planning, and other housing-
related topics.  Data resources include the American Housing Survey, the State of the 
Cities Database, and others.  Data are available at national, state, and local levels. 

Available at: http://www.huduser.org/about/pdrabout.html

Joint Center for Housing Studies at Harvard University 
The Joint Center for Housing Studies at Harvard analyzes the relationships 

between housing markets and economic, demographic, and social trends.  Its annual 
State of the Nation’s Housing provides data on housing markets, demographic 
characteristics, homeownership, and housing needs.  Data are national and regional. 
The Joint Center’s  senior program provides research on issues such as aging in place, 
home modifications, and housing and health care for seniors. 

Available at: http://www.jchs.harvard.edu/

7.  EDUCATION INFORMATION 

Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) 
BLS makes available education-related data including the number and earnings of 

teachers at the national, state, and county levels. 

Available at: www.bls.gov/data/home.htm

http://www.hwysafety.org/
http://www.hud.gov/
http://www.huduser.org/about/pdrabout.html
http://www.bls.gov/data/home.htm


National Center for Education Statistics (NCES) 
NCES is the Federal entity that collects and analyzes data that are related to 

education in the United States and in other countries.  NCES surveys and programs 
are organized into several areas: assessments (of academic performance and literacy 
levels); early childhood; elementary/secondary; international; library; postsecondary; 
and references.  Data are available at the national, state, and school district levels. 

Available at: http://nces.ed.gov

National Center for Public Policy and Higher Education 
The National Center for Public Policy and Higher Education is an independent 

organization that provides education-related data.  The Center produces an annual 
State-by-State Report Card for Higher Education as well as other state-level analyses. 

Available at: www.highereducation.org

National Education Association (NEA) 
NEA is an organization of 2.7 million members who work at every level of public 

education, from preschool to university graduate programs.  NEA has state and local 
affiliates across the country.  Data are available at national, state, and school district 
levels.  Examples of state-level data include expenditure per pupil and average teacher 
salaries. 

Available at: http://www.nea.org/edstats/

National Institute for Literacy (NIFL) 
NIFL, which is administered by the Secretaries of Education, Labor, and Health 

and Human Services, makes available literacy data national, state, and local level. It 
also publishes periodic State Policy Updates. 

Available at: http://www.nifl.gov/nifl/publications.html

http://nces.ed.gov/
http://www.highereducation.org/


8.  TECHNOLOGY INFORMATION 

Federal Communications Commission (FCC) 
The FCC provides data and statistics on telephone use, wireless use, radio, and 

broadcast and cable television activity.  Some data are available at the local and state 
levels. 

Available at: www.fcc.gov

National Telecommunications and Information Administration 
(NTIA) 

NTIA, a division of the Economics and Statistics Administration of the U.S. 
Department of Commerce, compiles telecommunications and information statistics.  
Many of the data are national; computer and Internet usage is reported by state. 

Available at: http://www.ntia.doc.gov/ntiahome/dn/hhs/HHSchartsindex.html     or 
http://www.esa.doc.gov/ 
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